

A/B Block Schedules for High Schools

District Leadership Forum

Madelyn Bowers

Research Associate

Olivia Rios

Senior Research Manager

LEGAL CAVEAT

EAB Global, Inc. ("EAB") has made efforts to verify the accuracy of the information it provides to members. This report relies on data obtained from many sources, however, and EAB cannot guarantee the accuracy of the information provided or any analysis based thereon. In addition, neither EAB nor any of its affiliates (each, an "EAB Organization") is in the business of giving legal, accounting, or other professional advice, and its reports should not be construed as professional advice. In particular, members should not rely on any legal commentary in this report as a basis for action, or assume that any tactics described herein would be permitted by applicable law or appropriate for a given member's situation. Members are advised to consult with appropriate professionals concerning legal, tax, or accounting issues, before implementing any of these tactics. No EAB Organization or any of its respective officers, directors, employees, or agents shall be liable for any claims, liabilities, or expenses relating to (a) any errors or omissions in this report, whether caused by any EAB organization, or ony of their respective employees or agents, or sources or other third parties, (b) any recommendation by any EAB Organization, or (c) failure of member and its employees and agents to daily the terms set forth herein.

EAB is a registered trademark of EAB Global, Inc. in the United States and other countries. Members are not permitted to use these trademarks, or any other trademark, product name, service name, trade name, and logo of any EAB Organization without prior written consent of EAB. Other trademarks, product names, service names, trade names, and logos used within these pages are the property of their respective holders. Use of other company trademarks, product names, service names, trade names, and logos or images of the same does not necessarily constitute (a) an endorsement by such company of an EAB Organization and its products and services, or (b) an endorsement of the company or its products or services by an EAB Organization. No EAB Organization is affiliated with any such company.

IMPORTANT: Please read the following.

EAB has prepared this report for the exclusive use of its members. Each member acknowledges and agrees that this report and the information contained herein (collectively, the "Report") are confidential and proprietary to EAB. By accepting delivery of this Report, each member agrees to abide by the terms as stated herein, including the following:

- All right, title, and interest in and to this Report is owned by an EAB Organization. Except as stated herein, no right, license, permission, or interest of any kind in this Report is intended to be given, transferred to, or acquired by a member. Each member is authorized to use this Report only to the extent expressly authorized herein.
- 2. Each member shall not sell, license, republish, distribute, or post online or otherwise this Report, in part or in whole. Each member shall not disseminate or permit the use of, and shall take reasonable precautions to prevent such dissemination or use of, this Report by (a) any of its employees and agents (except as stated below), or (b) any third party.
- 3. Each member may make this Report available solely to those of its employees and agents who (a) are registered for the workshop or membership program of which this Report is a part, (b) require access to this Report in order to learn from the information described herein, and (c) agree not to disclose this Report to other employees or agents or any third party. Each member shall use, and shall ensure that its employees and agents use, this Report for its internal use only. Each member may make a limited number of copies, solely as adequate for use by its employees and agents in accordance with the terms herein.
- Each member shall not remove from this Report any confidential markings, copyright notices, and/or other similar indicia herein.
- Each member is responsible for any breach of its obligations as stated herein by any of its employees or agents.
- If a member is unwilling to abide by any of the foregoing obligations, then such member shall promptly return this Report and all copies thereof to EAB.

Table of Contents

1) Ex	ecutive Overview	4
- ,	Key Observations	
2) A/	B Block Schedule Motivations and Structures	5
	Motivations	5
	Structure and Modifications	6
	Additional Schedule Considerations	
4) Blo	ock Schedule Implementation	13
	Collecting Feedback	13
	Changes to Instruction	14
	Professional Development	
5) Re	search Methodology	17
-	Project Challenge	
	Project Sources	
	Posoarch Paramotors	

1) Executive Overview

Key Observations

Administrators at profiled schools implement a block schedule to provide increased flexibility for students, better prepare them for college, and ease their course load-related stress. Contacts at all five profiled schools emphasize that the block schedule model allows students to take more courses throughout their four-year high school career. Contacts report lower levels of student stress and increased preparedness for college or careers.

Administrators at profiled schools often operate a modified version of the A/B block schedule to accommodate the time requirements of different courses. Four of five profiled schools administer a modified version of an A/B block schedule. Variations of the A/B block schedule at profiled schools include a hybrid model (i.e., some combination of A/B model and 4x4 model), A/B alternating with rotating Fridays, and a blended block (i.e., both 90-minute periods and 45-minute periods).

Administrators often create new courses or implement new curricula after they implement a block schedule model. With longer class times and additional credit accumulation, block schedules can open avenues for innovation in high school curricula. The block schedule model allowed administrators at School D to implement an integrated math curriculum, and administrators at School B created courses focused on social and emotional learning to support student success.

Contacts at profiled schools emphasize that the block schedule model allows teachers to employ more interactive and project-based learning strategies in the classroom. Interactive classroom strategies include Socratic discussions, handson labs, and real-world problem solving. Block schedule models provide teachers with time to include active learning activities in addition to direct instruction to better engage students and deepen learning.

Provide collaborative professional development sessions before the initial implementation of a block schedule to help teachers adapt to increased class time. These sessions focus on how to develop transitions during a longer lesson and how to engage students in project-based learning activities. Administrators invite teachers and departments from nearby schools to help train teachers in subject-specific teaching strategies and to help align curricula to the block schedule. After the initial implementation, academic departments administer these professional development sessions independently.

2) A/B Block Schedule Motivations and Structures

Motivations

Block Schedules Can Increase Course Capacity, Mitigate Student Stress, and Prepare Students for College

Administrators at profiled schools cite increased course capacity for students, decreased student stress, and increased college preparation as the three main motivations for implementing a block schedule.

Motivations for Implementing a Block Schedule at Profiled Schools

Increase Course Capacity for Students



Contacts at all five profiled schools note that the block schedule model allows students to take more courses throughout high school. Because students can accrue more credits in a block schedule versus a traditional schedule, students have more flexibility in course selection and can more easily make up courses should they perform poorly.

Also, in a block schedule, students have more time to:

- Participate in jobs or internships during the school day
- · Have free periods or study halls
- Explore interests in sports, performing arts, and other electives

Mitigate Student Stress



Administrators at **School D** implemented a block schedule largely due to an increase in student stress related to coursework and homework. Prior to the transition to a block schedule, students balanced six courses worth of homework daily on top of extracurricular activities, which proved overwhelming for many students. According to administrators, students do not report as much stress within the block schedule model as they did within the traditional schedule model.

Prepare Students for College



Contacts at **School B** believe the block schedule model better prepares their students for the typical college course schedule, where courses meet in large blocks of time and do not typically meet daily. The longer class periods coupled with increased flexibility in course selection make a block schedule model like the typical college schedule.

Structure and Modifications

Modify the A/B Block Schedule to Accommodate Course Needs

Administrators at profiled schools often operate a modified version of the A/B block schedule to accommodate the time requirements of different courses. All profiled schools except **School E** administer a modified version of an A/B block schedule. At School E, all courses offered fit into the A/B block format.

Three Types of A/B Block Schedule Modification at Profiled Schools

Hybrid Model

Administrators at **School A** and **School D** integrate the 4x4 block schedule model (i.e., students enroll in four courses per semester for two semesters) with the A/B schedule.



- Ninth and tenth grade students typically take courses that operate on the 4x4 schedule. This schedule helps students acclimate to high school courses, since they only take four courses at a time (instead of the six or seven taken by students in upper grades).
- Administrators offer rigorous courses with spring evaluations on an A/B schedule. Because students study the course materials throughout the year, they are therefore better prepared for the spring exams. Students at the eleventh and twelfth grade level often enroll in more rigorous courses (e.g., AP courses) so tend to follow a more traditional A/B schedule.

Standard A/B Model with Alternating Fridays



Administrators at **School B** operate a traditional A/B block schedule with alternating Fridays to meet the state-mandated minimum number of instructional minutes for career and technology courses.

- Mondays through Thursdays are alternating A/B days, while Fridays alternate between "A" days and "B "days from week-to-week.
- Administrators occasionally repeat a week to meet the state's minimum number of instructional minutes for career and technology courses.

Blended Model



Administrators at **School C** offer a blended A/B block schedule broken into eight, 45-minute periods, called "skinny" courses, to increase course scheduling flexibility and maximize teachers' instructional time.

- Administrators offer courses either as 90-minute block courses or 45-minute "skinny" courses. All types of courses are offered as skinny periods depending on the needs of students.
- Skinny courses alleviate course capacity issues as administrators can
 offer bottleneck courses, such as algebra and introductory English, in
 a variety of block and skinny periods.

Examples of A/B Block Schedule Modifications at Profiled Schools

Example Hybrid Model Schedule						
	Semes	ter One	Semester Two			
Block	А	В	A	В		
One	AP World History	AP English	AP World History	AP English		
Two	Spanish III	Spanish III	Art	Music Theory		
Three	Calculus	Calculus	Chemistry	Chemistry		
Four	Performing Arts	Study Hall	Performing Arts	Study Hall		

Example Alternating Friday Schedule						
	Monday	Tuesday	Wednesday	Thursday	Friday	
Week One	Schedule A	Schedule B	Schedule A	Schedule B	Schedule A	
Week Two	Schedule A	Schedule B	Schedule A	Schedule B	Schedule B	
Week Three	Schedule A	Schedule B	Schedule A	Schedule B	Schedule A	
Week Four	Schedule A	Schedule B	Schedule A	Schedule B	Schedule A	

Example Blended Block Model						
Block		A	В			
	Skinny (45 minutes)	English	Math			
One	Skinny (45 minutes)	English Support	Math Support			
Two	Two (90 minutes)	Chemistry	World History			
Three	Three (90 minutes)	Web Development	Programming 1			
Four	Four Skinny (45 minutes)	Spanish	Spanish			
	Four Skinny (45 minutes)	Gym	Gym			

Additional Schedule Considerations

Build in Time for Students to Access Additional Support During the School Day

Administrators at **School C**, **School D**, and **School E** incorporate additional support time into students' schedules. These advisory periods allow students to receive personal and/or academic support.

Administrators at School C offer academic support to students during a "skinny" period. For example, if a student needs extra support in English beyond the normal class period, administrators will place the student in a 45-minute academic support course. Students who perform poorly on state-wide assessment also receive additional academic support in the form of a "skinny" period.

Administrators at School D include a ten-minute advisory period for students three days a week. Students meet with an assigned advisor to discuss personal, social, and academic issues. The advisory period serves as an important time for advisors to more deeply understand their advisees' lives and school experiences beyond the classroom.

Advisory at School D



Students attend advisory period for **ten minutes** between periods one and two on **Monday**, **Thursday**, and **Friday**.



Students are **assigned an advisor** when they begin high school and **remain with the same advisor** until graduation.



Teachers serve as advisors and oversee small groups of students.

Students at School E receive one 35-minute period of flexible time every day. Students can access administrative offices, the library, the quad (i.e., the open common area near the office), and teachers' offices during this time. This period takes place between the first and second periods of the day.

School E Uses Formal Tutorial Center During Built-in Academic Support Time



The Tutorial Center at **School E** is a student-run, academic support center. Located in the library, the Tutorial Center is designed for collaborative and interactive academic support. Students can access the Tutorial Center to receive tutoring from peer tutors during their flexible 35-minute period or during study hall periods. One dedicated staff member manages the Tutorial Center space, creates tutoring schedules, and trains peer tutors. The Tutorial Center has proven to be an effective way to provide additional academic support to students beyond the support teachers provide during classroom time.

Contacts at School B want to build in an advisory period for their students but cannot do so because they must adhere to the state's minimum instructional minutes for career and technology courses. Contacts do note, however, that pull-out advising (i.e., students are pulled out from class to receive academic support) is easier in a block schedule because students do not miss entire classes to receive support. Students may miss a portion of the class, but longer class periods enable them to make up missed work within the standard class period.

Stagger Lunch Periods to Reduce Strain on Cafeteria Space

Administrators at **School A**, **School B**, and **School C** offer staggered lunches during the third instructional period of the day. Administrators extend this period by 30 to 60 minutes to accommodate lunch scheduling. Beyond food service staff, contacts do not note any impact to non-instructional staff due to a block schedule model.

When creating the course schedule each year, administrators at School A ask all teachers when they would like lunch to take place during the third period. While most teachers opt for lunch before or after instructional time, a few teachers opt for lunch in the middle of instructional time to offer their students a break from the material. The first and third lunches are full while the second lunch is much smaller, which reduces distracting transition noise in the hallways while other students are in the middle of classes.

Examples of Staggered Lunches

Two Staggered Lunches					
Periods 1, 2, and 4 are 92 minutes					
Period 3 is 148 minutes	Lunch One	Lunch	12:10pm - 12:59pm 1:04 pm - 2:38pm		
(12:10pm – 2:38pm)	Lunch Two	Class Lunch Class	12:15pm - 1:04pm 1:04pm - 1:49pm 1:54pm - 2:38pm		

Three Staggered Lunches					
Periods 1, 2, and 4 are 90 minutes					
Period 3 is	Lunch One	Lunch	11:10am - 11:40am		
125 minutes		Class	11:45am - 1:15pm		
(11:10am -	Lunch Two	Class	11:15am - 12:00pm		
1:15pm)		Lunch	12:00pm - 12:30pm		
		Class	12:35pm - 1:15pm		
	Lunch Three	Class	11:15am - 12:45pm		
		Lunch	12:45pm - 1:15pm		

Examples of Staggered Lunches (cont.)

Four Staggered Lunches					
Periods 1, 2, and 4 are 94 minutes					
Period 3 is 120	Lunch One	Lunch	10:43am - 11:13am		
minutes		Class	11:13am – 12:43pm		
(10:43am –	Lunch Two	Class	10:43am - 11:13am		
12:43pm)		Lunch	11:13am - 11:43pm		
		Class	11:43am - 12:43pm		
	Lunch Three	Class	10:43am - 11:43am		
		Lunch	11:43am - 12:13pm		
		Class	12:13pm - 12:43pm		
	Lunch Four	Class	10:43am - 12:13pm		
		Lunch	12:13pm - 12:43pm		

Consider Allowing Students to Leave Campus during Lunch to Reduce Lunchtime Pressure

Administrators at **School B** offer two lunches to students. Administrators considered adding a third lunch period due to the recent dramatic increase in student population but opted instead to offer senior students the opportunity to leave campus during lunch. Contacts note that enough seniors leave campus to reduce pressure of the food service staff and cafeteria space. Contacts also pointed out that that off-campus obligations, like career preparation, internships, jobs, and college courses, also reduce the lunchtime strain.

For more information on open campus lunch policies, please see EAB's report High School Open Campus Lunch Policies.

Block Schedules Provide Additional Planning Time for Teachers

At most profiled schools, teachers saw their planning time double compared to a traditional schedule. This increased planning time was a key factor to gaining buy-in from teachers during initial block schedule implementation.

Teachers at **School A**, **School B**, and **School D** receive one entire block for planning (e.g., 90 minutes) every day. Teachers at these schools instruct three of four block periods daily, or six of eight periods, throughout the year.

Teachers at **School C** receive approximately 45 minutes daily for planning time. Teachers typically instruct six block periods and one skinny period throughout the year.

Teachers at **School E** officially receive 90 minutes of planning every other day. Teachers instruct five of seven courses throughout the year, and the remaining two periods are provided as a planning period and an "unassigned" period. Contacts note that many teachers use their unassigned period as another planning period, though they are not obligated to spend this time planning. Teachers can meet with other teachers, spend time on personal development, or enjoy a peaceful meal.

Integrate Collaboration Time for Teachers Before or During the School Day

Administrators at **School C**, **School D**, and **School E** provide collaborative time for teachers on a daily or weekly basis. Contacts report that collaborative time is most effective before or during the school day, when teachers have few external, conflicting commitments.

Three Methods to Provide Collaborative Planning Time for Teachers

Before School with a Late Start Schedule

Administrators at **School D** have implemented Monday late-starts in their bell schedule for collaborative teacher planning time.



- Every Monday, departments meet from 8:00am 9:00am to discuss subject-specific instructional strategies, curriculum, and general updates.
- Occasionally, these Monday late-starts serve as school-wide meetings to solve larger problems involving all teachers and administrators.
- To accommodate this collaborative time, administrators reduce class periods 15 minutes each on Mondays.

After School

Administrators at **School E** implement after-school collaborative time for teachers once per week.



- Departments independently offer trainings and discussions, and sometimes staff-wide meetings take place during this collaborative time
- Contacts note that after-school collaborative time is not as effective as before-school time, as staff members frequently have conflicting commitments during the afternoon collaborative sessions.
- Administrators may consider transitioning to morning collaborative time and implementing a late-start schedule.

Reserved Periods in School Day During Curriculum Transitions

Administrators at **School C** provide collaborative time for departments that recently switched curriculum or textbooks. Administrators only offer this collaborative time during a curriculum transition. While beneficial for staff, scheduling this collaborative time for departments proves challenging for administrators given the variability of their course schedules.



- Teachers instructing Algebra 1 and Geometry recently implemented a new curriculum and textbook. Administrators gave these teachers two skinny periods (one block period) daily all year to collaborate on classroom and lesson strategies for this new curriculum.
- One skinny period (i.e., half of this collaborative block) is "unstructured" collaborative time, where teachers can discuss the new curriculum and new teaching strategies together. An assistant principal joins the other skinny period and provides administrative oversight.
- Because no students can be scheduled for these courses during the planning period, other classes accommodate many more students during this period than other periods.

Consider Creating Professional Learning Communities to Promote School-Wide Collaboration

Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) are collaborative teams of teachers focused on improving student learning with reflective self-evaluation of instructional strategies and continuous learning. PLCs serve as advocates for student-focused classroom strategies and continuous improvement of instruction and curriculum.

Three Big Ideas of PLCs¹

1: Ensure Students Learn



A PLC holds responsibility for maximizing student learning. As a group, teachers identify what each student should learn, how teachers will know if a student has met expectations, and how teachers should respond if students have trouble learning.

2: Build a Culture of Collaboration



A PLC should promote a collaborative culture. Teachers work as a team to analyze and improve their classroom practices. The team engages in discussions focused on teaching goals, strategies, materials, pacing, questions, concerns, and student results.

3: Focus on Results



PLCs judge their effectiveness based on student results. Instead of simply collecting data, teachers work as a group to analyze and compare data on student learning.

District administrators at **School D** created and supported PLCs when the school first made the transition to a block schedule. The district invited external speakers to educate all teachers in the School About the PLC model and the importance of collaboration to promote student success.

PLCs at School D



PLCs advocate for adjustments to curriculum and instruction based on student achievement to promote continuous improvement and learning across the school.



PLCs enable teachers to bring interesting classroom strategies to PLC meetings, discuss them with colleagues, and then implement the new strategies in the classroom. Teachers then report back to the larger group to discuss how students reacted to the new strategies.

Richard DuFour. "What is a "Professional Learning Community"." Educational Leadership (May 2004) pgs. 6-11 http://www.allthingsplc.info/files/uploads/DuFourWhatIsAProfessionalLearningCommunity.pdf

4) Block Schedule Implementation

Collecting Feedback

Continuously Seek and Collect Feedback from Teachers and Students

Communicating frequently and clearly with teachers about the block schedule transition is key to garnering wide-spread support for the initial change.

Administrators should collect feedback from teachers throughout the initial implementation process. After block schedule implementation, administrators should routinely check in with teachers and students to identify potential future schedule adjustments.

Prior to the 2018-2019 school year, administrators at **School A** operated a standard A/B schedule. The standard model made scheduling courses difficult for administrators, and courses like math and world languages were not suited for the alternating-day schedule. Administrators changed the format of various courses on an ad-hoc basis, which made tracking course schedule adjustments tedious. Around 2015, administrators began considering schedule model alterations to better serve their students.

Process to Adapt Block Schedule at School A

- Administrators interviewed teachers from each department to field suggestions for schedule model improvements.
- Instructional staff in each department created their ideal course schedules.
- Administrators incorporated each department's suggestions to create a master schedule that they determined best supported student learning.

The new hybrid model better suits the needs of students, teachers, and courses. Administrators at School A have more flexibility and offer courses daily for one semester (e.g., world languages), every other day for one semester (e.g., art), or every other day for the whole year (e.g., AP science) depending on the needs of students and the course. Though challenging, contacts note that the comprehensive and collaborative review of their standard block schedule helped garner teacher support for implementing a blended block schedule.

Administrators at **School B** and **School E** initially offered standard A/B block schedules four days a week with a traditional schedule on the remaining day each week. Contacts received feedback that teachers did not enjoy re-calibrating their lessons for the shorter periods one day per week, and students reported high levels of stress due to the need to meet homework requirements for all eight courses once each week. Administrators at both schools decided to eliminate the traditional schedule day to alleviate student and teacher stress related to coursework.

Administrators at **School D** have not adjusted their block schedule model after implementation but continue to adjust course offerings to accommodate teacher and student needs. For example, administrators initially offered world language courses on the standard A/B schedule. Teachers expressed the need for students to engage in daily practice to best engage with the foreign language, so administrators switched foreign languages to a daily course offered each semester. As another example,

math courses used to be offered in a solid block (i.e., daily block period for one semester) model. Students who took math during the fall semester reported feeling unprepared for the spring state standardized test, so administrators changed math courses to the standard A/B schedule.

Changes to Instruction

Block Schedules Facilitate Innovations in Curriculum and Course Offerings

With longer class times and additional credit accumulation, block schedules facilitate innovation in high school curricula. Contacts at **School D** say that the block schedule model allows them to experiment in all aspects of their curriculum. Block periods slow down learning to focus on intentional lessons with interactive applications of new knowledge. The block schedule encourages teachers to try new classroom management and instructional strategies because they have longer class periods in which to experiment.

Block Schedule Allowed *School D* to Implement an Integrated Math Curriculum

Administrators at **School D** changed their math curriculum from isolated math (i.e., separate courses for Geometry, Algebra, Calculus, etc.) to integrated math (i.e., one course that explores multiple math topics) due in part to increased class time in a block schedule. Administrators implemented this new math curriculum and adjusted classroom strategies periodically without feeling pressured to get it right the first time.

Because students have more flexibility in their course selection in a block schedule than in a traditional schedule and a block schedule aligns more closely with a typical college schedule, administrators at **School B** introduced social and emotional learning courses in this model to help students prepare for life after graduation. Examples of these courses include a self-management course called "Effective Learning" and a course that helps students develop resiliency and confidence called "Goals for Personal Success."

Longer Classes Allow Teachers to Employ Interactive Learning Techniques

Contacts at profiled schools emphasize that the block schedule model allows teachers to employ more interactive and project-based learning strategies in addition to direct instruction. Administrators at profiled schools observe an increase in project-based learning in all courses after the transition, most notably in subjects such as math, where direct lecture-style instruction is traditionally more common. Interactive classroom strategies include Socratic discussions, hands-on labs, and real-world problem solving.

At **School D**, teachers have more time to connect with students and discover how their students learn and what strategies they can employ to maximize their students' learning during extended block periods. Teachers organize multiple activities during a block period and can spend enough time on each activity without feeling rushed.



Teachers Connect Real-World Events to Lessons

Social Science teachers at **School D** now show CNN Student News in class because of the additional class time provided by a block schedule. Teachers then engage students in discussions about real-world events, integrating topics discussed in their most recent lessons and connecting theories to current events.

Contacts at **School E** notice fewer lectures and more dynamic instruction in courses due to the block schedule. Many teachers have adapted their instructional strategies and change activities more frequently to keep students engaged with their course materials. Teachers use more technology-based activities in their courses with additional time to present course material and conduct activities. Teachers also include more pre- and post-assessments to gauge student learning with their extended class time. These assessments help teachers better orient lessons toward students' weaknesses and determine effective classroom activities.

Professional Development

Provide Professional Development on Teaching Longer Lessons Before Implementing the Block Schedule Model

Administrators at profiled schools provided professional development sessions before the initial implementation of a block schedule to help teachers adapt to 90-minute classes. These sessions focused on how to develop transitions during a longer lesson and how to engage students in project-based learning activities. A resounding theme to these professional development sessions is collaboration: administrators at most profiled schools invited teachers from local schools to collaborate with their teachers to develop instructional strategies and lesson plans for the block schedule. After the initial implementation, academic departments create and administer block schedule-related professional development sessions independently at all profiled schools.

Professional development sessions should include workshops on creating new lesson plans that suit longer block periods. Because teaching for a block period is very different than teaching for a 45-minute period, it is imperative that administrators provide support to their teachers in developing lesson plans for a block period before the actual implementation of a block schedule. Below are six key elements of an effective block period lesson plan.

Qualities of an Effective 90-Minute Lesson Plan²



Variety in Activities and Instructional Strategies



Smooth Transitions Between Activities



Time to Present Information



Time for Student Practice



Time for Review and Closure



Wise and Careful Planning

Invite Experienced Teachers to Speak at Professional Development Sessions

Administrators at **School E** invited teachers and administrators from a neighboring high school that recently transitioned to a block schedule to present during the summer professional development session. These experienced teachers and administrators provided advice and guidance for teaching in an extended class period. The discussions with experienced teachers provided invaluable guidance for overcoming common challenges in teaching in a block period. Teachers were better prepared to start the first year with some tools and suggestions from other teachers.

Administrators at **School A** facilitated joint department meetings with academic departments from other high schools within the district to prepare their teachers for the shift to a block schedule. Departments collaborated to align curriculum to the block schedule and develop transitions within lessons. During these collaborative meetings, teachers worked together to develop content-specific transitions and activities to move smoothly through a class.

Offer Teachers Opportunities to Observe Block Scheduled-Classrooms to Prepare for the New Schedule Model

Contacts at **School C** express the value of observation to help teachers navigate teaching in a block schedule. Provide teachers the opportunity to observe classes in neighboring school districts, focusing on the tactics used to engage students in the learning process. Reach out to neighboring districts or other high schools in your district and ask administrators if their teachers would be interested in joining a discussion on teaching for a block period.

Ongoing Professional Development Related to Block Schedules is Decentralized at Profiled Schools

For the first year after block schedule implementation, some profiled schools continued professional development oriented around classroom strategies. However, after the first year, administrators at profiled schools decentralized professional development specific to the block schedule to academic departments or PLCs.

Administrators at **School A** keep a running document with teachers' notes and feedback regarding the block schedule and block periods. Administrators incorporate teacher feedback into trainings and bell schedule alterations.

Departments create trainings to help teachers implement innovative learning techniques, manage student behavior, and adapt the curriculum around the block schedule. Department-run trainings prove helpful for teachers as they communicate subject-specific instructional techniques and share the collective knowledge of the department staff. These trainings evolve as teachers discover new strategies and bring them back to share in their department trainings.

PLCs provide a natural professional development opportunity as teachers continuously bring new ideas for classroom strategies to the group. PLCs often discuss new teaching strategies and student feedback on recent activities.

5) Research Methodology

Project Challenge

Leadership at a member institution approached the Forum with the following questions:

- When did contact districts switch from a traditional schedule to a block schedule?
 - o What motivated contact districts to switch to block scheduling?
 - Why did contact districts choose the A/B block schedule instead of the 4/4 or integrated models?
- What is the structure of contact districts' block schedule?
- What challenges did contact districts face when designing the school day?
- How does a block schedule impact non-instructional time at contact districts?
 - Do contact districts' schedules include academic support periods for students?
 - Do contact districts' schedules include built-in collaborative planning time for teachers?
 - o How did contact districts schedule lunch periods?
- How did instructional delivery change as a result of block scheduling?
- How did the transition to a block schedule impact instructional staff at contact districts?
- What support did contact districts provide to instructional staff before, during, and after implementing a block schedule?
- Did contact districts restructure professional development sessions to help teachers acquire new skills? If so, what did they include?
- Did contact districts hire additional staff to support teacher training and development during implementation? If so, how did the additional staff support implementation efforts?
- How did the transition to a block schedule impact other staff members at contact districts?
 - o How did contact districts support these staff members?
- What unexpected roadblocks occurred during the transition from a traditional high school schedule to a block schedule at contact districts?
 - o How did contact districts overcome these challenges?
- Does the contact district consider its implementation of a block schedule to be successful?
- What, if anything, would the contact district do differently if they could go through the implementation process again?

Project Sources

The Forum consulted the following sources for this report:

- EAB's internal and online research libraries (eab.com)
- The Chronicle of Higher Education (http://chronicle.com)
- National Center for Education Statistics (NCES) (http://nces.ed.gov/)
- DuFour, Richard. 2004. "What is a "Professional Learning Community"." Educational leadership 6-11.
- North Carolina Public Schools. "Adjusting to the Block Methodology and Instructional Strategies."
 (http://www.ncpublicschools.org/docs/curriculum/worldlanguages/resources/flonblock/08adjusting.pdf)

Research Parameters

The Forum interviewed high school administrators at the assistant principal level with significant knowledge of curriculum and instruction.

A Guide to Institutions Profiled in this Brief

District	State	Approximate Enrollment
School A	Virginia	1,800
School B	Texas	1,900
School C	Ohio	2,000
School D	California	2,000
School E	California	1,400